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Contents of the Addendum 

A. Important Announcements  
B. Questions and Answers – Enclosed are answers to questions sent to the RFP email address and 

submitted through the pre-submission conference. 
C. Contact Information – Contact information is provided for those individuals who attended the 

pre-submission conference and indicated their willingness to share their contact information.  



A. Important Announcements 
 

1. New Submission Deadline 

Please note that the submission deadline has been extended to February 11, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. 
Proposals shall be submitted electronically. A third addendum will be released prior to the 
submission deadline with submission instructions and answers to any additional questions. 
Please submit questions to be answered in this final addendum by 5:00 p.m. on January 19, 
2021.  

2. Submission Instructions 

HPD will be accepting electronic submissions only for this RFP. Electronic signatures may be used. 
If you intend to submit a proposal for this RFP, please send an email to 
KingsboroughMorrisRFP@hpd.nyc.gov@hpd.nyc.gov and express an intent to submit by February 
1, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. In this email, please also provide an email address for the contact person 
that will be managing your submission.  This contact will receive an email link to a secure site 
where they may upload the submission. HPD commits to sending a receipt confirmation.  
 
Please note that the upload site does not support the uploading of folders. For each file that will 
be submitted, please use the following file name convention: Project Name_Lead Development 
Team Members_File Description.pdf 
 
If you do not wish to upload your asset statement using the secure upload link, you may mail a 
physical copy to: HPD Office of Neighborhood Strategies 100 Gold Street, 9X Area New York, NY 
10038 If you choose to mail your asset statements, please provide an expected delivery date to 
the RFP email address separately. 
 

3. New Requirement and Preferences 
 

A. In addition to the Project requirements stated in the RFP document please take note of the 
following new requirement: 

  
Internet Access Plan 
The COVID-19 pandemic emphasized our reliance on high-speed internet in order to 
communicate with others, access news and information, and for some, work remotely. 
However, many New Yorkers, especially those in low-income neighborhoods, do not have 
access to high-quality internet due to cost or lack of infrastructure. HPD recognizes that its 
new construction projects can help bridge the internet access divide. To this end, the for 
Projects to include an Internet Access Plan: 

 
Developers shall ensure that all common areas and individual dwelling units are provided with 
access to the internet via open access infrastructure that is available to any interested internet 
service provider (ISP). Additionally, developers shall ensure fiber cable internet technology is 
installed to provide better internet access to individual units and common areas, regardless of 
whether the building can access a fiber network at the time of construction. 

 
There is also a Development Program and Economic Development preference criterium:  



Submissions that actively lower barriers to internet access for the building’s residents. Such 
proposals should explain how residents of the building will be able to access internet through 
technologies and/or service contracts offered by the building to residents, [and the expected 
speed and quality of service]. Respondents should refer to the NYC Principles for Internet 
Service and Infrastructure outlined in the City’s Internet Master Plan (see figure 4, page 3). 

 
The Internet Access Plan should be included in Tab J: Development Program in the form of a 
brief narrative describing the plan for internet infrastructure and resident connectivity in the 
new building. The strategy should focus on the NYC Principles for Internet Service and 
Infrastructure outlined in the City’s Internet Master Plan (see Figure 4 on page 3). 
Respondents should outline upfront and/or ongoing costs associated with the proposed 
strategy. 

B. Community Visioning Summary: 
 
In addition to the preferences and competitive criteria stated in the RFP, please make note of 
two preferences that were discussed in the pre-submission conference but were 
unintentionally omitted in the RFP document. 
 
1) As part of the Development Program and Community Economic Development Criteria, 

preference will be given to Submissions that thoughtfully consider goals and priorities 
outlined in the Community Visioning Summaries (Appendix A). 

2) As part of the Design and Performance Criteria, preference will be given to Submissions 
that thoughtfully consider goals and priorities outlined in the Community Visioning 
Summaries (Appendix A). 

 

4. Form A-1: Completeness Checklist 
 
A line in the Completeness Checklist erroneously referenced an item named “Proposed Changes 
to RFQ Development Team, if applicable (Form A-3).”  Please disregard as Form A-3 is not part of 
the submission package.   

  



B. Questions and Answers 
 
1. Is HPD or NYCHA requiring pre-qualification to respond to this RFP? 

 
The RFP is open to all developers who meet the threshold criteria.  HPD and NYCHA are not 
using the PQL from the Seniors First RFQ for this RFP.  
 

2. Is there a preference for acquisition payments or ground lease payments to NYCHA? 

There is no requirement or preference for acquisition payments or ground lease payments from 
the Development to NYCHA. Proposals should assume a nominal ground rent of $1.00 per lot 
per annum. 

3. How many units will be supported by Section 8 Project Based Vouchers? 

We anticipate is that all units will be supported by Project Based Vouchers (PBV). 

4. The RFP states that all respondents assuming project-based Section 8 should underwrite rents 
at 100% of 2019 FMR.  Should we still use 2019 FMR or 2020 FMR?  
 
For units supported by PBVs, Projects should assume rental assistance at 100% of the 2020 FMR. 
 

5. Are we allowed to use the floor area and apply open space requirements of the entire zoning 
lot or are we limited to using the floor area generated of the Proposed Tax Lot? 

You may use available zoning floor area generated from outside the proposed tax lot to achieve 
the unit count indicated in the RFP.  Any excess development rights would be retained by 
NYCHA.  

6. By what mechanism will the City allow height and setback modifications indicated in the RFP? 
 
Respondents may propose height, streetwall, and setback modifications if Proposals 
demonstrate how any such proposed modifications/variance would benefit the affordable 
housing development. The City, working with the designated development team, will determine 
the best course of action to ensure DOB approval that includes any such modifications.   
 

7. Should modifications to zoning requirements be established against the height factor 
regulations or quality housing regulations? 
 
Respondents should indicate whether QH or height factor is being utilized and describe the 
modifications to the applicable zoning accordingly.   

 
8. Can you discuss the role the Community Visioning Summary will play in the design evaluation? 

Preference will be given to Submissions that thoughtfully consider the priorities and goals 
outlined in the Community Visioning Summaries. 



9. Can the improvements, such as landscaping, extend beyond the Proposed Tax Lot? 

For the purposes of the RFP, any substantive improvements that would impact the budget 
should be limited to the Proposed Tax Lot.  

10. Is there any medical facility or retail added to the Program? 
 

Retail uses are not allowed by zoning for either site.  Development Teams may propose medical 
facilities or other community facility spaces separate from the residential component.  

 
11. Are potential community facilities offering social services intended to only serve the residents 

of the building or can the facility and services target a broader population? 
 

Social services for building residents that are part of the SARA program homeless set-aside must 
be provided within a space that is part of the residential component.  Social services and 
community facility space intended to serve a broader population may additionally be provided 
through a separate community facility at the Development Team’s discretion.  

  
12. Does the RFP include any competitive criteria or guidelines workforce, career opportunities, 

labor standards, and community hiring? 
 

As indicated in the RFP, Applicants must comply with NYCHA REES and Section 3 requirements.  
Competitive criteria in the RFP further describe training and hiring plans will be evaluated.   

  
 

13. What is the extent of NYCHA’s involvement with tenant management, operations, and 
maintenance of the Project? 

 
The Project will be operated by the development team and its selected management company.  
NYCHA’s involvement would be limited to the administration of PBVs, assuming such PBVs are 
issued by NYCHA.   
 

Kingsborough  

14. Can a zoning lot merger between lots 175 and 1 be considered to generate additional floor 
area for the project? 

 
Respondents may assume current lot 175 and Lot 1 is part of the subject zoning lot for the 
zoning analysis.  

Morris 

15. Will HPD/NYCHA waive parking requirements for this site if it is not in a transit zone? 
 
Zoning requires parking accessory to the residential use. Respondents proposing a scenario that 
does not include parking should provide a justification for why providing parking presents a 
significant challenge to building affordable housing on this Site and additionally provide a zoning 
complaint alternative scenario in brief narrative form.   

 



C. Contact List
Name Org Name Email
Jennifer Steinberg WSFSSH jsteinberg@wsfssh.org
Alicia Garcia The Monroe Group alicia@themonroegroupllc.com
Paola Duran Hanac pduran@hanac.org
David Downs Catholic Charities POP Development david.downs@ccbq.org
Josh F Frankel Hunter Roberts Construction Group jfrankel@hrcg.com
Fernando Villa Magnusson Architecture &amp; Planning P.C. Fvilla@maparchitects.com
Igor Mar Dynamic Development &amp; Construction LLC I.mar@dynamicdevgroup.com
Beth Greenberg Dattner Architects Bgreenberg@dattner.com
Karen Gorman WellLife Network, Inc karen.gorman@welllifenetwork.org
Michael Newman CSD Housing, LLC mnewman@csdhousing.com
Lauren LaMack Services for the UnderServed llamack@sus.org
Cameron Kostyra Selfhelp Realty Group, Inc. ckostyra@selfhelp.net
Guido Hartray Marvel Arch ghartray@marvelarchitects.com
Cara McAteer Breaking Ground cmcateer@breakingground.org
Shira Gidding-Shaul True Development New York, LLC shira@truedevelopmentny.com
Paul Castrucci Paul A. Castrucci, Architects Paul@castrucciarchitect.com
Leroy Li Think! Architecture &amp; Design leroy@think-arc.com
Chris Lebron Xenolith Partners chris@xenolithpartners.com
Andrea Kretchmer Xenolith Partners andrea@xenolithpartners.com
Terri Belkas-Mitchell Xenolith Partners LLC terri@xenolithpartners.com
Philip Hofmann St. Nicks Alliance phofmann@stnicksalliance.org
Myles Monaghan The NRP Group mmonaghan@nrpgroup.com
michael pilla DP Group General Contractors/Developers mpilla@dpgroupgc.com
Frank Dubinsky Monadnock Fdubinsky@monadnockdevelopment.com
Mark Ginsberg Curtis + Ginsberg Architects LLp mark@cplusga.com
Elissa Winzelberg Breaking Ground ewinzelberg@breakingground.org
Samuel Biele-Fisher Bright Power sfisher@brightpower.com
Cody Wiewandt Kevin Daly Architects cody@kevindalyarchitects.com
Ellen Kackmann Albanese Organization ekackmann@albaneseorg.com
Lorinda Karoff Karoff Consulting lkaroff@karoffconsulting.com
Darren Reid LS TECH LAND SURVEYING &amp; ENGINEERING, PLLC info@lstechpllc.com
Kelly Biscuso RiseBoro Community Partnership kbiscuso@riseboro.org
lashawn henry Urban Strategies of New York inc Lhenry422@gmail.com
Rachel Hyman RHYMAN CONSULTING, LLC rhyman@rhymanconsulting.com
Zach Korb Breaking Ground zkorb@breakingground.org
Christopher Fagan Christopher Fagan Studio Architecture PLLC cfagan.arch@gmail.com
Stephanie Basman SKA Marin stephknepper@skamarin.com
Robert Jefferson IMPACCT Brooklyn robert_jefferson@impacctbk.org
RAJENDRA Patel P &amp; K Contracting, Inc. rpatel@pkcontractinginc.com
Joanna Kandel Camber Property Group jkandel@camberpg.com
Bernell K Grier Pratt Area Community Council, Inc.  dba IMPACCT Brooklyn bernell_grier@impacctbk.org
Jesse Floyd Beyer Blinder Belle jfloyd@bbbarch.com
ROHIT A SHAH P&amp;K CONTRACTING INC rohit@pkcontractinginc.com
Silas Leavitt HANAC, Inc. sleavitt@hanac.org
Joshua Frankel Hunter Roberts jfrankel@hrcg.com
Joshua Weisstuch Gilbane Development Company jweisstuch@gilbaneco.com
Sydelle Knepper SKA Marin sknepper@skamarin.com
Katherine Gray Gilbane Development Company kgray@gilbaneco.com
Charlie Stewart St. Nicks Alliance cstewart@stnicksalliance.org
Vivian Mandala CMC Workforce vivian@cmcworkforce.com
Nicole Vlado Shakespeare Gordon Vlado Architects nicole@sgvarch.com



Stacie Wong GLUCK+ swong@gluckplus.com
Val Henry Local Development Corporation of Crown Heights VHENRY@LDCCH.ORG
deborah widerkehr consultant deborah@mlappinllc.com
Richard Martoglio RPM Development Group rmartoglio@rpmdev.com
Alex Tolpin Georgica Green Ventures, LLC atolpin@georgicagreen.com
Reia Tong Douglaston Development rtong@ddny.com
Marketing Department CetraRuddy Architecture marketing@cetraruddy.com
Matt Scheer Magnusson Architecture and Planning mscheer@maparchitects.com
Joel Kolkmann Douglaston Development jkolkmann@ddny.com
puja HPD anandp@hpd.nyc.gov
Eddie R Aguirre Innovative Property Management eddie@ipmdevelopment.com
Jacob Bluestone Blue Sea Construction Co., LLC jacob.bluestone@blueseadev.com
Brian Loughlin Magnusson Architecture and Planning bloughlin@maparchitects.com
Jeff Goldberger UE Architecture Jgoldberger@uearchitecture.com
William A Moses WAMA w.a.moses@gmail.com
Lindsay Maguire Naik Consulting Group lmaguire@naikgroup.com
Valerie Samuel All Boro Expediter info@valeriesamuel.com
Anna Abramowicz A2 architecture anni@a2architects.com
Olivia Ryder Steven Holl Architects bd@stevenholl.com
Dan S Build Affordable daniel@buildaffordable.co
DAVID KIRSCHENBAUM DESIGN AIDD ARCHITECTURE david@designaidd.com
anthony fisher H2M architects + engineers afisher@h2m.com
Anthony Shitemi Urban Architectural Initiatives RA P.C. tshitemi@uai-ny.com
Cameron T. Kostyra Selfhelp Realty Group, Inc. ckostyra@selfhelp.net
Diane Shenoy Engineering, PC diane@shenoyengineers.com
Bernard Benchmark Title Agency LLC berniecarr@gmail.com
Awilda Aponte Camba Chiqita027@gmail.com
Deviayani Gobin Self help Dgobin@hotmail.com
Jacqueline de Dios R.F. Wilkins Consultants jdedios@rfwconsultants.com
Sara Grant Murphy Burnham &amp; Buttrick sgrant@mbbarch.com
Nadja Barlera GNY LECET nbarlera@gnylecet.org
IAN PINTO DESIGN AIDD ARCHITECTURE IAN@designaidd.com
ANDREA HARRIS DESIGN AIDD ARCHITECTURE ANDREA@designaidd.com
Richard Gentzler Framework Architecture PC rd@fwarchitecture.com
Seth Bynum Genesis Companies sbynum@genesiscompanies.com
Evelyn wolff Selfhelp Realty Group Ewolff@selfhelp.net
Karolina Czeczek Only If Architecture kc@only-if.com
Marcel Garon The NRP Group mgaron@nrpgroup.com
Tim McManus CCPOPD tim.mcmanus@ccbq.org
Allen Farberov Macquarie allen.farberov@macquarie.com
Jill Crawford Type A Projects crawford@typeaprojects.com
Keith Gordon NCV Capital gabrielle@ncvcapital.com
Michael Bowden KPFF Consulting Engineers shadi.boulos@kpff.com
Desiree Andrepont The Community Builders desiree.andrepont@tcbinc.org
Paul A. Kress Volunteers of America-Greater New York, Inc. pkress@voa-gny.org
Harris Bedell Pembroke Residential hbedell@dvln.com
Patrick Logan Lemle &amp; Wolff Development Company plogan@lemlewolff.com
Lourdes Zapata SoBro lzapata@sobro.org
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